
 
 
To: MEMBERS OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Councillors N.White (Chair), Wren (Vice-Chair), Caulcott, 
Flower, Groves, Lee and Sayer  
 
Independent Person: Mr S Mundy 
 
Substitute Councillors: G.Black, Botten and Crane 
 

for any enquiries, please contact: 
customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk 

01883 722000 

C.C. All Other Members of the Council 5 September 2022 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
TUESDAY, 13TH SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 7.30 PM 
 
The agenda for this meeting of the Committee to be held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Station Road East, Oxted is set out below.  If a member of the Committee is unable to attend the 
meeting, please notify officers accordingly. 
 
Should members require clarification about any item of business, they are urged to contact officers 
before the meeting. In this respect, reports contain authors’ names and contact details. 
 
If a Member of the Council, not being a member of the Committee, proposes to attend the meeting, 
please let the officers know by no later than noon on the day of the meeting. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
David Ford 
Chief Executive 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
1. Apologies for absence (if any)   
  
2. Declarations of interest   
 

All Members present are required to declare, at this point in the meeting or as soon as 
possible thereafter: 
  
(i) any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) and / or 
(ii) other interests arising under the Code of Conduct 
  
in respect of any item(s) of business being considered at the meeting. Anyone with a DPI 
must, unless a dispensation has been granted, withdraw from the meeting during 
consideration of the relevant item of business. If in doubt, advice should be sought from the 
Monitoring Officer or her staff prior to the meeting. 
  

3. Minutes of the meeting held on the 15th March 2021  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To confirm as a correct record  
  

4. Minutes of the meeting held on the 26th May 2022  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

To confirm as a correct record 

Public Document Pack

mailto:customerservices@tandridge.gov.uk


 

  
5. Minutes of the meeting held on the 7th June 2022  (Pages 9 - 12) 
  
6. To deal with any questions submitted under Standing Order 30   
  
7. Monitoring Officer Update  (Pages 13 - 26) 
  
8. Any urgent business   
 

To consider any other item(s) which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered as a 
matter of urgency - Local Government Act 1972, Section 100B(4)(b). 
 
 



 

 

TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes and report to Council of the virtual meeting of the Committee held on the 15th March 
2021 at 7.30pm. 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Pursehouse (Chair), Caulcott, Parker and N.White 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Allen, Lockwood and Mills and Mr. Shaun Mundy 

(Independent Person)  

 
 

296. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  
 
This item was added to the agenda following the resignation of ex-Councillor Milton (the 
previous Vice-Chair) earlier in the day.  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that Councillor Caulcott be appointed Vice-Chair of the Committee for 
 the remainder of the Municipal Year.  
 
 

297. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 11TH JANUARY 2021  
 
These were confirmed as a correct record. 
 
 

298. MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT  
 
As recommended by the Committee for Standards in Public Life, the Local Government 
Association had produced an updated model code of conduct for councillors following an 
extensive consultation exercise. The Council’s Standards Committee had participated in that 
consultation process following consideration of the matter at its 21st July 2020 meeting.    
 
The key areas of difference between the Council’s current Code of Conduct and the new Model 
Code were: 
 
(i)  the introduction of a new section on bullying and harassment, including a definition of 
 the terms; 
 
(ii)  increased content relating to equalities and diversity; 
 
(iii)  a requirement to declare any gifts and hospitality which are offered and declined; 
 
(iv)  a requirement to disclose, and not take part in any discussion or vote on a matter where 
 a Councillor has an interest which directly relates to their financial interest or wellbeing 
 (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) e.g. something that affects the financial 
 interest or wellbeing of a friend, relative or close associate; 
 
(v)  the new Code is set out as a personal commitment for Councillors to sign up to (rather 

than ‘Dos and Don’ts’ as per the current version) and includes guidance. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 

Officers had facilitated meetings with Tandridge councillors and parish council chairs to review 
the new model code. At both meetings, there was general support for Tandridge to adopt the 
code in its entirety. This was endorsed by Shaun Mundy, the Independent Person. The 
Committee was therefore invited to recommend such adoption to Council and for the 
constitution to be amended accordingly.   
 

COUNCIL DECISION 
(subject to ratification by Council) 

 
 R E C O M M E N D E D – that  
 

A. the Local Government Association’s New Model Code of Conduct, as shown at 
Appendix A to the report, be adopted; and 
 

B.  authority be delegated to the Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer to make any 
consequential amendments required to the Constitution. 

 
 

299. ARRANGEMENTS FOR HANDLING COMPLAINTS ON 
COUNCILLOR CONDUCT AND INDEPENDENT PERSON 
PROTOCOL  
 
The Committee considered proposed amendments to the current arrangements for dealing with 
standards complaints, informed by practice in other councils and recommendations by the 
Committee for Standards in Public Life. The revisions were intended to clarify the process and 
increase its transparency and effectiveness. The main changes were: 
 
• clarification of the involvement of the Independent Person throughout the process; 
 
• addition of estimated timescales for completion of each stage (subject to provision of 

information by third parties); 
 
• addition of criteria to be used when assessing whether or not to refer a complaint to 

investigation; 
 
• additional detail about the approach to be taken by the Hearings Panel; 
 
• a new process for the appointment of members to the Hearings Panel, which aims to 

ensure that all Panels comprise members who have no conflicts of interest regarding the 
complaint and have been appropriately briefed; 

 
• clarification on the nature of complaints which may be referred to the Hearings Panel. 
 
A suggested protocol for the Independent Person, which sought to increase understanding of 
the role, was also presented. Arising from the debate, the Monitoring Officer agreed to 
document a process for recruiting the Independent Person.   
 
 R E S O L V E D – that the revised arrangements for dealing with standards complaints, 
 as attached at Appendix A to the report (subject to non-material drafting changes 
 circulated prior to the meeting) be approved. 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

COUNCIL DECISION 
(subject to ratification by Council) 

 
 R E C O M M E N D E D – that the protocol for the Independent Person, as attached at 

Appendix B to the report, be adopted as part of the Constitution. 
 
 

300. MEMBER OFFICER PROTOCOL  
 
The current protocol had been adopted in February 2019 and had recently been reviewed 
following consultation with a cross-party group of Members. The Committee considered 
proposed revisions to the protocol in light of that review. These sought to clarify the mutual 
responsibilities of Members and Officers and set out how each should work effectively with 
each other (e.g. regarding decision-making, giving information and advice and responses to 
enquiries).  
 
Regarding section 6 of the protocol (access to officers and information) the question of whether 
Members should be given timescales for officer responses to their enquiries was discussed. It 
was suggested that, while the nature of Member enquiries could vary significantly, officers 
might reasonably be expected to acknowledge an enquiry within 48 hours and, at the same 
time, state an estimated timescale for the substantive response. It was not considered 
appropriate to agree such an amendment without consulting the Executive Leadership Team 
(ELT). Instead, the Committee was content for matter to be discussed with ELT in due course, 
with a view to a further report being submitted to a future meeting. In the meantime, the 
Committee wished to endorse the revisions to the protocol as presented.         
 

COUNCIL DECISION 
(subject to ratification by Council) 

 
 R E C O M M E N D E D – that the proposed changes to the protocol for Member / 
 Officer relations, as attached at Appendix A to the report, be adopted.      
 
 

301. MEMBER INDUCTION 2021 AND MEMBER DEVELOPMENT 
2021/22  
 
Suggested programmes for new Member induction and ongoing Member development were 
presented.  
 
It was intended to run the new Member induction programme over a longer period than in 
previous years, following the May 2021 elections with a broad range of subject matters. Current 
Councillors would also be encouraged to attend sessions so that all Members have the most up 
to date understanding of the topics.  
 
The on-going Member development plan comprised departmental briefings and e-learning 
modules, including an ‘introduction to how councils work’ which newly elected Members would 
be expected to complete during the first committee cycle of 2021/22.  
 
Where possible, training would be provided internally. However, £5,000 had been transferred 
from the staff training budget to fund external trainers for Members when required. A similar 
provision would be sought as part of the budget process for 2022/23 to enable ongoing funding 
for Member development. 
 

Page 5



 

 
 

In accordance with the Committee’s decision at its previous meeting, all training undertaken by 
Councillors since 2020 would be uploaded onto their profile page on the website. It was 
acknowledged that Group Leaders had a key role to play in encouraging as many Members as 
possible to participate in the development programme. Member engagement with the 
development programme was considered a vital prerequisite for Councillors being able to fulfil 
their roles effectively.   
 
 R E S O L V E D – that   

 
A. the new Member induction programme, as attached at Appendix A to the report, be 

agreed; 
 
B.  the Member development programme, as attached at Appendix B to the report, be 

agreed. 

 
Rising 8.11 pm 

Page 6



 

 

 
TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes and report to Council of the meeting of the Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Station Road East, Oxted on the 26th May 2022 at 8.59 pm. 
 
 
PRESENT:  Councillors Caulcott, Groves, Lee, Sayer, N.White and Wren 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Flower 
 
 

10. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2022/23  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that Councillor Sir Nicholas White be elected Chair of the Committee 
 for the  2022/23 municipal year. 
 
 

11. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR FOR 2022/23  
 
 R E S O L V E D – that Councillor Wren be elected Vice-Chair of the Committee for  the 
 2022/23 municipal year. 
 

 
Rising 9.00 pm  
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

TANDRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes and report to Council of the meeting of the Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Station Road East, Oxted on the 7th June 2022 at 6.00pm. 
 
PRESENT: 
(in person) 

Councillors N.White (Chair), Wren (Vice-Chair), Crane (in place of Sayer), 
Flower, Groves and Lee 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 
(in person) 

Shaun Mundy (Independent Person) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: 
(virtually) 

David Kitson (Bevan Brittan, the Council’s legal advisers) 
David Maycock (South East Employers) 
The complainant 
The complainant’s representative  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillors Caulcott and Sayer 

 
12. STANDARDS ISSUE RELATING TO A FORMER COUNCILLOR  

 
The Committee resolved to deal with this item in ‘Part 2’ in accordance with Section 100A (4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) on the grounds that: 
 
(i)  it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3 of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act; and 
 
(ii)  for the item, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest 

in disclosing the information. 
 
This item related to a complaint from a member of staff (hereafter referred to as ‘the 
complainant’) concerning the conduct of former Councillor Tony Elias (hereafter referred to as 
‘TE’) towards the complainant. The complaint alleged that TE had breached the following 
paragraphs of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members: 
 
2.1. Do treat others with respect. In particular, you should promote equality by not 

discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with respect 
regardless of their race, age, religion, gender , sexual orientation or disability.  You 
should also respect the impartiality and integrity of the Council’s employees. 

 
2.2 Do not conduct yourself in a manner which is contrary to the Council’s duty to promote 

and maintain high standards of conduct by Members. 
 
The complaint also alleged that the Council was aware of a situation of bullying and 
harassment and failed to stop it. 
 
David Maycock had been commissioned to undertake an independent investigation into the 
matter and his report had been sent to the all relevant parties.  
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

The Chair introduced those present and confirmed that TE was not in attendance. The Chair 
also advised that the complainant was not being called as a witness by the investigating officer 
and was not a party to proceedings. The Committee agreed that both the complainant and the 
complainant’s representative could observe the proceedings while on-line.     
 
Councillors Groves and Flower raised various procedural concerns which were discussed until 
6.57pm, when the Chair asked David Maycock to present his report. Councillors Groves and 
Flower stated that they had further procedural concerns that required consideration. The Chair 
ruled that David Maycock be now heard, upon which Councillors Groves and Flower left the 
meeting.   
     
David Maycock presented his report which concluded that, based on the evidence he had 
gathered, and on the balance of probabilities, a number of TE’s actions and comments towards 
the complainant were inappropriate, disrespectful and served to undermine the complainant’s 
position within the Council and therefore constituted a breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct 
for Members. However, it was found that none of these actions and comments amounted to 
unlawful discrimination. The Investigating Officer also concluded that, in respect of the 
allegation of bullying and harassment, the evidence submitted by the complainant did not 
support the claim that TE’s  behaviour was discriminatory or bullying in nature. 
 
At 7.49pm, the remaining Committee members, assisted by David Kitson, retired to consider 
whether, based on the evidence before them, a breach of the Council’s Code of Conduct for 
Members had occurred. All other on-line participants were placed in a virtual waiting room, 
pending the announcement of the Committee’s decision. At the conclusion of the Committee’s 
deliberations, the other on-line participants were re-admitted to the meeting and Committee’s 
decision was announced, namely: 
 
 R E S O L V E D – that, following deliberations, and taking into account the views of the 

Council’s Independent Person: 
 
A. arising from a complaint by an officer, the Committee agrees with the Independent 

Investigator’s findings that former Councillor Tony Elias had breached the following 
clauses of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members which applied at the time of 
the complaint: 

 
• Paragraph 2.1 … treating others with respect; and 
  
• Paragraph 2.2 … not conducting oneself in a manner which is contrary to the 

Council’s duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members 
 

B. in light of the above, the following apology be issued to the complainant on 
behalf of the Committee: 

 
 “The Chair of the Committee apologises wholeheartedly regarding: 
 
• the behaviour of former Councillor Elias towards you which was found to be 

in breach of the Code; and 
 
• the time it has taken for this matter to be determined 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

 
 

C. this outcome be: 
 

• brought to the attention of all councillors and staff; and  
 
• in light of the duty imposed on the Council by Section 27(1) of the Localism 

Act 2011 to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by councillors, 
made the subject of a press release.  

 
 
 

 
Rising 8.53 pm 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Monitoring Officer report  

 

Standards Committee – Tuesday, 13th September 

2022  

 

Report of:  Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer  
 

Purpose:  For information  

 

Publication status: Open 

 

Wards affected: All  

 

Executive summary:  

The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report summarises the matters within the remit 
of the Standards Committee and the work done by the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
from 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022 to promote and maintain high standards of 

conduct by Councillors.  

 

This report supports the Council’s priority of: Building a better Council 

Contact officer Lidia Harrison, Head of Legal and Monitoring Officer 

   lharrison@tandridge.gov.uk 

 

Recommendation to Committee: 

That the Standards Committee notes the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report. 

_________________________________________________________ 

Reason for recommendation: 

The various functions of this Committee and the Monitoring Officer include 

promoting and maintaining high standards of conduct and monitoring the 
operation of the Code of Conduct for Members. 

_________________________________________________________ 

Introduction and background 

1 Background 

 
1.1 The Monitoring Officer is appointed under Section 5 of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 and has several statutory functions 
in addition to those conferred under the Local Government Act 2000 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7

mailto:lharrison@tandridge.gov.uk


and subsequent regulations governing local investigations into 
Member conduct.  

 
1.2 Since its last annual report the Monitoring Officer function has:  

 
• Considered the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21 
• Reviewed the procedure for the Hearing of Allegations of 

breaches of the Code of Code of Conduct for Members; 
• Reviewed and agreed the LGA’s Model Code of Conduct 

• Undertaken Member Induction and Development; 
• Extended the term of Office of the Independent Person; 
• Drafted the Independent Person Protocol; 

• Revised the Member / Officer Protocol. 

 
1.3 The remainder of this report provides detail on complaints under the 

Monitoring Officer’s purview for the last two years. 

 

1.4 There are 3 potential stages through which a complaint may 

proceed:  
 

Stage 1 - Initial Assessment stage where the Monitoring Officer will 
decide whether to reject the complaint, seek informal resolution of the 
matter or refer the complaint for fact-finding investigation.  

 
Stage 2 - Where a complaint is referred for investigation, the 

Monitoring Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer to investigate 
the matter 

 

Stage 3 - If the Investigating Officer’s final report concludes that there 
is sufficient evidence of a failure by the Member to comply with the 

Code, the Monitoring Officer will consult with the Independent Person 
before either seeking a local resolution to the matter or sending the 

allegation before the Hearing Panel for determination. 
 

1.5 This is the first report detailing complaints since Full Council agreed to 

adopt the new LGA Model Code of Conduct at the Council meeting held 
on 22nd April 2021. The Council resolved to adopt the new LGA Model 

Code of Conduct which was drafted following recommendations by the 
Committee On Standards In Public Life. Significant training was 
provided to Councillors on the provisions of the new Code. 

 
1.6 The new Code remains based upon the Nolan Principles and aims to 

be a national code adopted by all tiers of Local Government. 
 

2 Complaints against Councillors 

 
2.1 It has been a busy two years in terms of complaints against District 

and Parish Councillors under the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring 
Officer function has received 8 complaints about District Councillors 

Page 14



between 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022. This compares with 11 
complaints received in the previous year.  

 
2.2 The Monitoring Officer function has received 10 complaints about 

Parish Councillors between 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022. This 
compares with 2 complaints received in the previous year.  

 

2.3 Of the 13 complaints (Parish and District) received for 1st July 2020 – 
30th June 2021: 

 
• 3 was not pursued by the complainant; 
• 2 were rejected at Stage 1 

• 2 were resolved informally 
• 6 reached stage 3 and was found there was insufficient evidence 

 
2.4 Of the 18 complaints received (Parish and District) for 1st July 2021 – 

30th June 2022:  

 
• 3 were not pursued by the complainant; 

• 2 were rejected at Stage 1 
• 5 were resolved informally 

• 1 reached stage 3 and was found there was insufficient evidence 
• 1 reached stage 3 and was escalated to the hearing panel 
• 1 reached stage 3 and was escalated to the Standards 

Committee 
• 5 live complaints. 

 
2.5 Social media has once again been a source of rancour both between 

Councillors and between Councillors and the public over the course of 

the last two years. Often these issues do not evolve into formal 
complaints and will therefore not find their way into the figures. 

 
2.6 It is also entirely legitimate, of course, for Councillors and others to 

make political points on social media, but there is a broad grey area 

between points of policy difference and what are effectively ad-
hominem attacks. While relevant case law guarantees extremely broad 

rights of free expression to politicians, Councillors do need to exercise 
care and restraint in not stepping too far into that grey area, 
particularly when the ‘homines’ being attacked are sometimes 

members of the public rather than fellow Councillors. 
 

2.7 Some complaints received do not constitute a breach of the Code of 
Conduct and are mainly a personal dissatisfaction with an individual 
Councillor or Councillors. Such matters do not fall within the purview 

of the Code and complaints are responded to accordingly. These are 
reflective of the fall-out, tensions and dissatisfactions that exist 

amongst some Councillors towards one another. The Code 
concentrates on behavioural matters and compliance with the Nolan 
Principles of Public Life, it does not consider political differences or 

disagreements on decisions taken. 
 

Page 15



2.8 During 2021/22, there has been regrettably an issue with the 
timeliness of dealing with complaints. The delay has been due to 

change of personnel and other urgent high priority issues which meant 
that Officers with responsibility for conduct complaints including the 

Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer were re-allocated to 
support those issues. Work has been undertaken to ensure that all 
outstanding complaints are dealt with as quickly as possible and 

complaints received in 2022/23 are being dealt with in a more timely 
manner 

 
3 Whistleblowing Complaints 

 

3.1 The Monitoring Officer also has overall responsibility for the 
maintenance and operation of the Whistleblowing Policy, which 

includes keeping a record of all whistleblowing cases and presenting a 
summary of these to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee on an annual 
basis. 

 
3.2 The Whistleblowing policy was revised in November 2020. This applied 

the policy to members of the public, stakeholders, and contractors as 
well as Officers. Whistle blowers are asked to report their concerns to 

named senior Officers. This ensured that Senior Management were 
aware of any matters and that the correct processes were followed 
and reported in turn to the Monitoring Officer. Not all complaints 

received are whistle-blowing reports, even where the complainant has 
cited them as such. In accordance with the Council’s Whistleblowing 

policy, complaints are assessed and either dealt with as 
Whistleblowing complaints or otherwise referred to the Council’s 
complaints process and investigated as part of that process. 

 
3.3 There have been no whistleblower complaints raised in the last two 

years. 
 

4 The Monitoring Officer’s Work 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022 

 
4.1 The Head of Legal has performed the role of the Monitoring Officer of 

the Council and has carried out the statutory functions since June 
2018. She was supported during part of that time in 2021 by two 
Deputy Monitoring Officers, Catherine De Bruin (until May 2022) and 

Barry Gilham (from May 2022 onwards). Barry Gilham deals 
predominantly with complaints raised against Parish Councillors. 

 

4.2 The three statutory officers (The Head of Paid Service, the S151 Officer 
and the Monitoring Officer), often called the “golden triangle” have 
specific roles within the Council and responsibility, with other Officers 

and with Councillors. The Statutory Officers used to meet regularly in 
2020 but this arrangement stopped during Covid and has been 
replaced more recently with MT (‘Management Team’) meetings. 

 

Page 16



4.3 It is acknowledged that many of the systems and behaviours that 
underpin good governance at the Council are still underused or absent. 
Some progress has been made in the past year or so in terms of 

drafting a governance framework but there are still elements that are 
weak within the organisation and which are being looked at as part of 
the Future Tandridge Programme via individual service reviews. 

 

4.4 The more significant issue for the Council is engendering a culture of 
good governance throughout the Officer and Member cohorts. These 

behavioural issues are a key factor in building a robust governance 
framework. There is a great deal of work to be done in this area and 
it is anticipated that with a new Deputy Monitoring Officer starting in 

November 2022, further work will continue in this area.  
 

4.5 In March 2021, the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) 
undertook a research piece to produce a new Governance Risk and 
Resilience Framework, which identifies behaviours that support a 

healthy governance environment and the work behind the Annual 
Governance Statement and the CIPFA principles in “Delivering Good 

Governance”.  
 

4.6 The seven behaviours set out in the CfGS report are as follows:  
 
• Extent of recognition of individual and collective responsibility 

for good governance. This is about ownership of governance and its 

associated systems;  

• Awareness of political dynamics. This is about the understanding 
of the unique role that politics plays in local governance and local 

government. Positive behaviour here recognises the need for the tension 
and “grit” in the system that local politics brings, and its positive impact 

on making decision-making more robust;  

• How the council looks to the future to set its decision-making 

priorities. This is about future planning, and insight into what the future 
might hold for the area, or for the council as an institution and includes 

the way the council thinks about risk;  

• Officer and councillor roles. Particularly at the top level, this is 

about clear mutual roles in support of robust and effective decision-
making and oversight. It also links to communication between key 

individuals, and circumstances where ownership means that everyone 

has a clear sense of where accountability and responsibility lie;  

• How the council’s real situation compares to its sense of itself. 
This is about internal candour and reflection; the need to face up to 

unpleasant realities and to listen to dissenting voices. The idea of a 
council turning its back on things “not invented here” may be evidence  

• Quality of local (external) relationships. This is about the council’s 
ability to integrate an understanding of partnership working and 
partnership needs in its governance arrangements, and about a similar 

integration of an understanding of the local community and its needs. It 
is about the extent to which power and information is shared and 

Page 17



different perspectives brought into the decision-making, and oversight, 
process;  

• The state of member oversight through scrutiny and audit 
committees. This is about scrutiny by councillors, and supervision and 

accountability overall.  
 

4.7 Some work (described below) has started to address these factors and 
will be used moving forward as a basis for identifying areas of risk for 

the Council in its governance framework. 
 

4.8 The Monitoring Officer duties are listed below with examples:- 
 

Duties Work undertaken 

1.Maintaining the Constitution.  

 
The Monitoring Officer is the 
‘guardian’ of the Council’s 

Constitution and is responsible to 
maintain an up to date version of it 

and that it is adhered to in practice. 

A key role for the Monitoring 

Officer is to be aware of the 
strengths and weaknesses of 
the Constitution adopted by the 

Council, and to make 
recommendations for ways in 

which it could be amended.  
 

During the year the Constitution 
has been updated several times 
to reflect best practice and 

provide clarification with the 
principles that are articulated 

within the Constitution. The 
reports that have been 
presented are listed below:- 

 
• Strategy & Resources 

Report on the Review 
of the timetable of 
meetings for the 

remainder of 2021/22 
and associated 

governance matters 
(5th October 2021); 

• Strategy & Resources 

Report on Improving 
Tandridge District 

Council’s Financial 
Management and 
Reporting 

Arrangements (1st 
February 2022) 

• Strategy & Resources 
Report on Contract 
Standing Orders (7th 

April 2022); 

Page 18



• Full Council Report on 

Allocation of seats to 
Committees and Sub-
Committees for 

2022/23 and 
constitutional 

amendments (26th 
May 2022) 

2. Ensuring lawfulness and 
fairness of decision making.  
 

After consulting with the Head of 
Paid Service and S151 Officer, the 

Monitoring Officer will report to the 
Audit and Scrutiny Committee  
if he or she considers that any 

proposal, decision or omission 
would give rise to unlawfulness or if 

any decision or omission has given 
rise to maladministration. Such a 
report will have the effect of 

stopping the proposal or decision 
being implemented until the report 

has been considered.  

 
 
 

There were no occasions where 
the Monitoring Officer had 
reason to believe that there was 

a likelihood that the Council was 
about to take a  

decision that would be unlawful. 
Counsel’s advice would be 
sought by the Monitoring Officer 

to clarify the position where 
necessary and to ensure 

effective discharge of a proposal 
or decision.  
 
Consequently, no reports have 
been issued to the Council under 

Section 5(2)(a) of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 

(1989).  
 
The Monitoring Officer is a 

member of the Council’s 
Management Team and 

Extended Management Team 
together with the Head of Paid 
Service and the s151 Officer as 

well as the Information 
Governance Management Team 

(IGMT) and a Member of the 
Procurement Board and is able 
to comment on issues discussed 

at these meetings. 
 

The Council’s legal team provide 
advice and assistance to Officers 
throughout the Council and 

report to the Monitoring Officer 
on any areas of concern in 

relation to lawfulness and 
compliance with the Council’s 

protocols and processes.  
 
The Monitoring Officer and her 

teams attend meetings and 

Page 19



provide advice to Officers and 

Members at an early stage, 
including seeing reports to 
Committees prior to publication.  

 
The Monitoring Officer also 

requires appropriate recording 
of delegated authority to 
evidence compliance with the 

Constitution. All such decisions 
are accompanied by a delegated    

authority form which is 
uploaded in Docusign for the 
Head of Paid Service, the 

Monitoring Officer, the s151 
Officer and any other member of 

EMT to sign. The Monitoring 
Officer is liaising with 
Democratic Services to see how 

these decisions are publicly 
available and as soon as 

possible.  

 
3. Advising whether Committee 
decisions are within their Terms 

of Reference. 

Both the Monitoring Officer and 
s151 Officer see reports prior to 

publication. 
 
The Monitoring Officer has 

advised on the revised draft 
Financial Regulations and draft 

Planning Protocol.  

4. Providing advice  

The Monitoring Officer will provide 
advice on the scope of powers and 
authority to take decisions, 

maladministration, financial 
impropriety, probity and budget 

and policy framework issues to all 
councillors and will support and 
advise councillors and officers in  

their respective roles.  

The Monitoring Officer regularly 

advises Officers and Members 
on issues of lawfulness 
including seeking external legal 

opinion where necessary.  
 

5. Contributing to Senior 

Management 
The Monitoring Officer will 

contribute to the senior 
management of the Council, in 
particular through the provision of 

professional advice on the 
lawfulness or probity of any matter.  

 

The Monitoring Officer is a 

member of the Council’s 
Management Team, and 

Extended Management Team 
(‘EMT’). The Monitoring Officer 
has also sat on the Future 

Tandridge Programme Board. 
 

Page 20



 

 

With the creation and 

appointment of a new Deputy 
Head of Legal (due to start at 
the end of November 2022) it is 

proposed that she will sit on 
SMT. 

 

6. To monitor the operation of 

the Members’ Code of Conduct  
 

 

 

In the current municipal year 

the Monitoring Officer has 
received 18 (10 Parish; 8 
District) complaints. The 

number of complaints are 
significantly up on previous 

years and is mainly in relation to 
matters that are connected to a 
particular Parish. Most 

complaints do not meet the 
threshold for investigation 

however they have required 
quite significant resource to 
process and have not 

contributed to the raising of 
standards at the authority.  

 
There has been one Parish 
complaint that has been 

escalated to the Hearing Panel. 
The panel accepted that the 

Parish Councillor had apologised 
and had acknowledged his error. 
The Panel urged the Councillor 

to exercise greater care while 
fulfilling his Parish Councillor 

duties in future. 
 

There has been one District 
complaint that had been 
escalated to the Standards 

Committee. There was a finding 
against the District Councillor 

for several breaches of the Code 
and by way of a sanction, the 
District Councillor was asked to 

send a letter of apology to the 
Officer concerned and to include 

all Officers and Councillors. 
 
 

6. To promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by 

Members. 

It is hoped that with the 
appointment of two new Deputy 

Monitoring Officers for both 

Page 21



 

 

 

Parish and District a new 

approach will be taken to 
dealing with complaints 
following the model identified by 

the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life in their best practice 

recommendations. This focuses 
on raising standards across the 
board, rather than seeking to 

use the Code as a way of 
resolving minor issues, which is 

costly, time-consuming and can 
be counter productive. This 
would result in behaviour being 

addressed more effectively than 
going through the formal Code 

of Conduct routes. This will be 
looked into in December when 
the new Deputy Monitoring 

Officer for District has been 
appointed. 

 

7. To assist Members, to 

observe the Members’ Code of 
Conduct.  
 

 

In January 2023, the Monitoring 

Officer and the two Deputies 
intend to meet with the Group 
Leaders to discuss the new 

approach to standards within 
the new framework and Parish 

Councillors to discuss behaviour 
so that there is a clear 
understanding of how issues will 

be approached and behaviours 
addressed.  

 

8. To advise, training or 

arranging to train Members,  
on matters relating to the 

Members’ Code of Conduct;  
 

Members have been trained on 

the Code in May 2022, including 
common issues that have arisen 

around Member/Officer roles. 
However it is the application of 
the Code and the understanding 

of Members as to “how we do 
things around here” that is 

important.  
 
 

9. To recommend to the Council 
on the adoption or revision of its 

Members’ Code of  
Conduct  

The Council adopted the LGA 
Model Code at Full Council on 

22nd April 2021. 
 

 

Page 22



10. To maintain and keep up to 

date a register of Members’ 
interests  
 

All Members of both Parish and 

District completed new returns 
following the 2022 elections and 
subsequent by-elections. 

Members are reminded to keep 
these up to date on a regular 

basis.  
The Register of Members’ 
Interests is published on the 

Council’s website.  
 

11.To prepare and keep under 
review a protocol for managing 

Member and Officer  
relationships.  

The Protocol for Member/Officer 
Relations was considered by this 

Committee on the 15th March 
2021 and approved by Full 
Council on 22nd April 2021. 

There is a need to train 
Members and Officer further on 

this and training will be provided 
as part of the work on the Future 
Tandridge Programme.  

 

 

10.9 The key messages to note from the year are:  
 

a) Between 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022 of the Council’s elected Members, 
one complaint raised required a referral to the Standards Committee.  

 

b) Between 1st July 2021 – 30th June 2022 of the Council’s Parish 
Councillors, one required an investigation or a referral to the Hearing Panel 

of the Standards Committee. They found a Parish Councillor to have 
breached paragraph 5 of the Parish Code of Conduct - “You must not 
conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 

bringing your office or authority into disrepute”. 
 

c) The Constitution continues to be regularly updated. 
 

d) On a positive note, most Councillors and most Parish Councils in 
Tandridge do not appear on my radar and that point should be noted by the 
Committee.  

 

d) The few that do come to the Monitoring Officer function’s attention 

regularly are entrenched in historical issues and behaviours. These do need 

to be addressed as it presents a risk of governance failure for the Council. 

 
5 Independent Person 
 

5.1 The Council currently has one Independent Person, Mr Shaun Mundy. He 
was first appointed by the Council on 19th July 2012 (via a recommendation 

from the Standards Committee on 4th July 2012). His initial term was from 
then until the end of the 2015/16 Municipal Year. He was reappointed at 

Page 23



Annual Council on 26th May 2016 to serve until the end of 2019/20. He was 
reappointed in 2020/21 and 2022/2023.  

 
5.2 The Independent Person is appointed by the Council to fulfil the statutory 

role set out in the Localism Act 2011. The role of the Independent Person 
is familiar to the Committee, but in summary, the prime duty is to provide 
impartial and independent advice and support to the Monitoring Officer in 

considering code of conduct complaints and, where required, to those 
making complaints and those complained about during the course of an 

investigation. 
 

5.3 When the new Deputy Monitoring Officer commences employment in 

November, it is anticipated that the arrangement around the Independent 
Person will be reviewed. 

 
6 Conclusion 
 

This report provides an overview of the work of the Monitoring Officer; the 
work of the Standards Committee and other governance arrangements for 

the Municipal year 2022/23 as well as the preceding year.  
 

With the more recent complaints received there is reference to one particular 
Parish Council and once the complaints have been fully investigated, the 
Monitoring Officer and the Deputy Monitoring Officer for Parishes intend to 

attend a meeting of that Parish Council and to liaise with the public and to 
observe how that Parish Council conducts its proceedings at meetings. 

Hopefully, the Parish Council would benefit and welcome any guidance and 
assistance from the Council in respect of the rules and procedures required 
at meetings.  

 

Key implications 

Comments of the Chief Finance Officer 

The Monitoring Officer’s Report has not identified any financial implications for this 
Council over and above normal requirements. 

Comments of the Head of Legal Services 

The comments of the Head of Legal Services are included in the body of this 

report. 

Equality 

 
Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the ‘general duty’ on public authorities 
is set out as follows:  
 

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to –  

 

Page 24



a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act;  

 
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  
 
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it.  
 

47. The public sector equality duty (specific duty) requires Officers to consider 
how it can positively contribute to the advancement of equality and good relations, 
and demonstrate that it is paying ‘due regard’ in Council’s decision making in the 

design of policies and in the delivery of services. As this is a decision on back office 
functions, the Monitoring Officer does not believe that it will have an impact on 

our equality duty on end users. 
---------- end of report ---------- 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 15th March 2021
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on the 26th May 2022
	5 Minutes of the meeting held on the 7th June 2022
	7 Monitoring Officer Update

